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          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Welcome,

          3  everyone.  Today we convene the Public Safety

          4  Committee to examine the implementation of Megan's

          5  Law in New York City, and consider two resolutions

          6  related to the Sex Offender Registration Act.

          7                 Let me introduce first my colleagues

          8  who are with me.  On my left I have Helen Foster

          9  from the Bronx, Melinda Katz from Queens, obviously,

         10  and we are also happy to have with us today

         11  Christine Quinn the Chair of our Health Committee,

         12  who is not on this committee but is, obviously, very

         13  interested its subject matter.

         14                 Resolution 81 calls on the New York

         15  State Legislature to increase the penalty for

         16  failure to register or verify an address as required

         17  by the Sex Offender Registration Act, and Resolution

         18  247 calls on New York State Legislation to amend

         19  Megan's Law to mandate community notification

         20  regarding sex offenders, and to require local law

         21  enforcement to provide education to the public

         22  regarding such notification.

         23                 In 1995, New York State enacted the

         24  Sex Offender Registration Act, which was modeled

         25  after New Jerseys Megan's Law, and named for 7-
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          2  year- old Megan Kanka.  I am informed that we have

          3  someone on our Committee who actually voted for

          4  Megan's Law in Melinda Katz, while she was on the

          5  Assembly.  So, congratulations for that.  Little

          6  Megan was raped and murdered in 1994 by a twice

          7  convicted sex offender who lived across the street

          8  from her home.           The Act sets up a system

          9  whereby sex offenders are given a classification

         10  based on the nature of their offence, and law

         11  enforcement is made aware of the offender when they

         12  are released from prison, and this information is

         13  made available to the public.

         14                 In October, we had a joint hearing

         15  with the Fire and Criminal Justice, and we examined

         16  how sex offenders are held accountable for their

         17  actions.

         18                 Today's hearing will be different.

         19  We will examine what happens after a sex offender

         20  returns to the community after being released, and

         21  how that notification and registration required by

         22  Megan's Law are implemented in New York City, and

         23  whether this notification if adequate.

         24                 Under Megan's Law, local law

         25  enforcement has the discretion to release certain
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          2  information regarding Level Two and Three sex

          3  offenders to vulnerable populations.  This notice,

          4  however, is not mandatory.

          5                 Furthermore, pursuant to this

          6  statute, the only information available on the Web

          7  through the states Department of Criminal Justice,

          8  is regarding Level Three offenders.

          9                 Among the other issues today that we

         10  will consider, is what, if any, protocol NYPD has

         11  established following with regard to notifying the

         12  community, and we will also examine, hopefully, to

         13  what extent the Department of Education has adopted

         14  a notification procedure.

         15                 Equally important, we will examine

         16  what, if any, education is provided to community

         17  members about the information they receive.

         18  Clearly, the notification under Megan's Law is not

         19  designed to harass anyone or give anyone excuse to

         20  engage in acts of vigilantism, rather, it is

         21  designed to give residents, particularly parents, a

         22  basis on which to inform their children about whom

         23  they should associate, with whom they should

         24  associate with, and to make choices about the places

         25  that they and their children have access to.
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          2                 I believe that more notification

          3  about sex offenders, not less, is warranted under

          4  Megan's Law, and that is why I sponsored Resolution

          5  247 calling on, making this notification mandatory.

          6  I also believe that the people that do not register

          7  under Megan's Law should have an increased penalty,

          8  and that is why I sponsored Resolution 81, which

          9  calls on the State Legislature to make failure to

         10  register a felony, as it should be.

         11                 I look forward to the testimony of

         12  the Criminal Justice Coordinator, NYPD, who I see

         13  here, and as well as any other interested parties,

         14  and we will begin now, I believe, with our Criminal

         15  Justice Coordinator, Mr. Feinblatt.

         16                 Thank you for joining us this

         17  morning, the floor is yours.

         18                 We have also been joined by our

         19  Minority Leader, Mr. Jim Oddo, who is also not a

         20  member of this Committee but, again, feels so

         21  strongly about this issue that he joins us this

         22  morning. Thank you Jim.

         23                 MR. FEINBLATT:  Good morning Chairman

         24  Vallone, and member of the Public Safety Committee,

         25  and other members of the Council.
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          2                 My name is John Feinblatt, and I am

          3  the Criminal Justice Coordinator for the City of New

          4  York.

          5                 I have been invited to appear before

          6  the Council today to give testimony regarding New

          7  York City's implementation of the Sex Offender

          8  Registration Act, commonly known as Megan's Law.

          9                 I am grateful this opportunity to

         10  discuss the innovative and aggressive manner in

         11  which the Bloomberg Administration has used Megans'

         12  Law to combat sexual assault in New York City.

         13                 Under the leadership of Mayor

         14  Bloomberg, our City has made extraordinary gains in

         15  the war against sex crimes.  Last year, all types of

         16  rapes were down four percent, a figure which

         17  includes a drop of nearly fourteen percent in

         18  stranger rapes.  And year- to- date, rapes have

         19  declined nearly five percent overall with stranger

         20  rapes falling another twelve percent.  These numbers

         21  are even more remarkable when you consider that

         22  rapes were already down over 40 percent during the

         23  last ten years.

         24                 And I am here to tell you that this

         25  drop, this remarkable success is no accident.  As I
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          2  told this Committee last October, the war against

          3  sex crimes has been a top priority for Mayor

          4  Bloomberg.  From day one, it has been something that

          5  he has emphasized.  In fact, within a month of

          6  taking office the Mayor made this eminently clear by

          7  bringing together the best minds in the business to

          8  form the Mayor's Sexual Assault Task Force, the

          9  first citywide working group of its kind.  Right

         10  from the start, the Mayor's Task Force has paid

         11  dividends, it has developed initiatives that attacks

         12  the terrible the terrible crimes of rape and sexual

         13  assault, and it has developed initiatives that

         14  attack the offenders who commit them in new and

         15  creative ways.  I am talking about cutting- edge

         16  initiatives like the John Doe Indictment Project,

         17  which prevents rapists from hiding behind the

         18  statute of limitations.  I am talking about a new

         19  citywide plea policy that has maximized the

         20  collection of DNA from convicted offenders.  And, I

         21  am talking about a project called the Bronx Sexual

         22  Assault Response Team that, in fact, just got up and

         23  running yesterday.  This team of highly- trained

         24  medical professionals will respond to every rape

         25  victim at all three public hospitals in the Bronx
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          2  within one hour, ensuring that valuable forensic

          3  evidence is collected expertly and with minimal

          4  trauma to the victim.

          5                 In our fight to put an end to the

          6  scourge, we have not hesitated to use every weapon

          7  in our arsenal, and we have found that one of our

          8  most powerful weapons is Megan's Law.

          9                 By way of background, Megan's Law is

         10  a State statute, on the books since January of`96,

         11  that requires offenders convicted of certain

         12  designated crimes to provide information to the

         13  State's Division of Criminal Justice Services for

         14  inclusion in a statewide registry.  It also places

         15  every registered sex offender into one of three risk

         16  categories:  Level 1 for those with low risk, Level

         17  2 for those who present a moderate risk, and Level 3

         18  for the highest risk offenders.

         19                 The law has two main components: An

         20  enforcement piece and a community notification

         21  piece.  The enforcement provision, in particular,

         22  has proven to be a highly effective tool for us.  As

         23  a general principle, this Administration believes

         24  strongly that the public safety is best served by

         25  aggressively pulling every criminal justice lever at
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          2  our disposal when it comes to violent offenses like

          3  rape.  And Megan's Law is one of the best and most

          4  unique levers we have, it presents a rare

          5  opportunity to prosecute violent criminals for

          6  victimless crimes.

          7                 In January 2003, the Mayor seized the

          8  opportunity when he announced an initiative call the

          9  Specially Targeted Offenders Project, or STOP, and

         10  simply put, STOP is about focusing like a laser on

         11  the offenders who are most likely to rape again. It

         12  is about identifying the City's most dangerous sex

         13  offenders and using every tool in the toolbox to

         14  stop them before the re-offend. And when I say "the

         15  most dangerous," I mean the serial rapists, I mean

         16  the sex offenders who assault strangers who attack

         17  the very young, the very old, or the mentally or

         18  physically incapacitated, the sexual predators who

         19  kill or seriously injure their victims. What I mean,

         20  is the worst of the worst.

         21                 With the STOP program, we have

         22  identified a group of approximately 670 sex

         23  offenders who fit this bill perfectly, a group that

         24  comprises only about 15 percent of the City's

         25  registered sex offenders.  We have taken these
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          2  offenders and put them under a microscope.  If they

          3  are on probation or parole, they are placed on a

          4  short leash.  This means more office visits, more

          5  home visits, more surveillance, more special

          6  conditions than other less dangerous offenders.  If

          7  they fail to abide by these conditions, what

          8  happens?  They are violated.  If they fail to

          9  satisfy any of the reporting obligations under

         10  Megan's Law, they are arrested and prosecuted by

         11  specially- trained prosecutors before specially

         12  designated STOP judges in each borough of the City.

         13  If they are re- arrested, all STOP partners are

         14  notified electronically, so that appropriate action

         15  can be taken.  The point is simple:  We are not

         16  going to wait for sex offenders to rape again.  We

         17  would much rather see them prosecuted for crimes

         18  like Failure to Register or violations of probation

         19  or parole than for crimes like rape or sodomy or

         20  sexual abuse.

         21                 STOP began in early 2003, and the

         22  early returns are encouraging.  Over the first year,

         23  arrests for Failure to Register under Megan's Law

         24  were up 36 percent compared to 2002, and just as

         25  importantly, we are getting better outcomes from
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          2  these arrests.           The incarceration rate for

          3  Megan's Law convictions was up a staggering 150

          4  percent over the previous year, and over the first

          5  quarter of 2004, these positive trends are

          6  continuing.              The bottom line is that

          7  since the advent of STOP, more dangerous sex

          8  offenders are being arrested and more of them are

          9  going to jail, all without the necessity of a single

         10  new victim.  This, we think, is the best, the

         11  smartest form of prevention.

         12                 The second major component of Megan's

         13  Law is community notification.  In a nutshell, here

         14  is how the process works in New York City.

         15                 Step One: When a registered sex

         16  offender is released from custody or placed on

         17  probation, the state DCJS mails the information for

         18  that offender to a special division of the Police

         19  Department called the Sex Offender Monitoring Unit,

         20  or SOMU.

         21                 Step Two: For Level 2 and 3 sex

         22  offenders, the only ones eligible for dissemination,

         23  SOMU puts together a package and forwards it to the

         24  Special Victims Squad in the borough where the

         25  offender is living.
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          2                 Step Three: The Special Victims Squad

          3  examines the file, makes a recommendation about

          4  which populations might be vulnerable to future

          5  attacks, and forwards it to the Borough Commanders.

          6                 Step Four: The Borough Commander

          7  makes a determination regarding what, if any,

          8  notification is appropriate.

          9                 Under Megan's Law, the decision about

         10  whether and how to disseminate information regarding

         11  sex offenders is left wholly to the discretion of

         12  the local police departments.  In making this

         13  decision, New York City Borough Commanders are

         14  guided by a uniform set of guidelines that has been

         15  in place since the law's inception.

         16                 In actual practice, community

         17  notification is nearly always made, with rare

         18  exceptions like cases in which dissemination is

         19  barred by the Doe v. Pataki injunction.

         20                 The bottom line is that the Police

         21  Department takes great care to ensure that the

         22  people, the organizations, and the institutions that

         23  are most at risk get the information they need to

         24  protect themselves.  To provide more detailed

         25  information about this process, I am joined today by
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          2  the Commanding Officer of the Special Victims

          3  Division, Deputy Inspector Susan Morley and Queens

          4  South Borough Adjutant, Inspector William Morris.

          5  They will be pleased to answer your questions.

          6                 As I mentioned at the beginning of my

          7  testimony, we have made great progress in driving

          8  down sex crimes, and Megan's Law has been a large

          9  part of that success.  But, with some help from

         10  Albany, I have no doubt that we could do even

         11  better.  Here are two common sense changes that

         12  would make a big difference for New York City.

         13                 First, the penalties for the crime of

         14  Failure to Register under Megan's Law should be

         15  increased.  A prosecution for a Class A misdemeanor

         16  is simply not commensurate with the threat posed to

         17  our City by sex offenders, especially Level 3 sex

         18  offenders, who knowingly refuse to tell law

         19  enforcement agents where they are.  Failure to

         20  Register should be a felony, no if's, and's, or

         21  but's.

         22                 Second, Level 1 and 2 sex offenders

         23  should be required to perform their annual address

         24  verification in person.            The current state

         25  of the law allows offenders to verify by mail,
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          2  providing very little assurance of where they are

          3  actually living.  Requiring offenders to appear at

          4  the local law enforcement agency in person and

          5  providing supporting documentation like utility

          6  bills or rent receipts would go a long way toward

          7  closing this loophole.

          8                 At the very least, the Legislature

          9  should do away with the affirmative defense that

         10  allow offenders who fail to annually register to

         11  escape prosecution if they have not actually moved.

         12  There is absolutely no reason why police should bear

         13  the burden of finding sex offenders, in fact, it

         14  should be the other way around.

         15                 Any support or assistance the Council

         16  could provide in bringing about these changes would,

         17  of course, be welcome.

         18                 In the meantime, we will continue to

         19  work together with the Police Department, the

         20  District Attorneys, Probation, Parole, Correction,

         21  and all of our criminal justice partners to develop

         22  new and effective ways of eradicating all forms of

         23  sexual assault.  Despite our success, we will not

         24  rest on our laurels and we will not be satisfied.

         25  Even one rape is too many.
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          2            I will be happy to answer any questions,

          3  or my colleagues will, as well.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Thank you,

          5  Commissioner, and Deputy Inspector Morley, I did not

          6  see you before.  Welcome back, you have been before

          7  this Committee, I did not recognize you.

          8                 Commissioner, thank you very much for

          9  your testimony.

         10                 Let me start by commending you for,

         11  and everyone out there, for the work you have done.

         12  I think the City needs to know more about the work,

         13  things like the STOP Program, which has been

         14  amazingly effective and the John Doe Indictment

         15  Project, which I fully support, and I think, was a

         16  brilliant, brilliant concept which was come up with

         17  by the City, to prevent to statute of limitations

         18  from running.

         19                 And, you ended up be discussing

         20  making this a felony, and we are on the same page

         21  there, obviously, that is what our resolution does

         22  and I am glad you support it, and I really like your

         23  ideas.

         24                 We read the testimony prior to you

         25  testifying, and we have already decided, at least my
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          2  staff and I, and it will go to my Committee soon,

          3  that we are going to amend our resolution to include

          4  what you have just called for about eliminating the

          5  affirmative defense, and the in- person

          6  verification.  I think those are both very important

          7  so we would like to work with you on that and we

          8  will do whatever we can, as you asked, to get this

          9  resolution passed and have the full vote of the City

         10  Council.

         11                 Even the rape statistics you

         12  mentioned, as the Deputy Inspector knows, we had a

         13  hearing on this not too long ago, and at that point

         14  rapes had been going up, at least last year, not in

         15  the context of the last ten years but at least for

         16  the last year, and we realize that that was largely

         17  due, in fact, all most totally due to the

         18  acquaintance rapes and we had a discussion about

         19  whether or not that was because of more community

         20  outreach, and more reporting.  But, these numbers

         21  for this year are excellent, and again, we commend

         22  you for that.  I had not been aware of that, so I

         23  know the year is young but this is a very good

         24  start, so, congratulations.

         25                 Start with a few questions though
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          2  about procedure because that is one of the main

          3  reasons we are here.  And, you laid it out in four

          4  steps which we appreciate, and which are very simple

          5  to follow.

          6                 I think that most important one

          7  though is when we get down to step four.  "The

          8  Borough Commander makes the determination regarding

          9  what, if any, notification is appropriate", and I

         10  believe you said that that is done based on a

         11  uniformed set of guidelines.  That is one of the

         12  main reasons we are here today. In different areas,

         13  at least in my borough, different notification

         14  criteria seems to be in effect, and now again, some

         15  of that may have to do with the schools as opposed

         16  to the Police Department, but what are the factors

         17  that are used in determining whether community,

         18  whether and what type of community notification are

         19  done?

         20                 MR. MORRIS:  Mr. Chairman, basically

         21  what will happen at the borough level is we will

         22  receive an investigatory package from the Sexual

         23  Offender Monitoring Unit, and the purpose of that

         24  package is to assist the Borough Commander in making

         25  a decision about what are the vulnerable
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          2  communities.

          3                 Once the Borough Commander has

          4  determined what the vulnerable communities are, then

          5  the notification process will begin.  We receive,

          6  from the Sexual Offender Monitoring Unit, a

          7  department form that has identified for us what the

          8  potential victims would be and then we take that and

          9  we make our decisions about whom to notify based on

         10  that at risk community.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  I have been on

         12  the website, and downloaded some people that moved

         13  into my district, now, one of them is a pedophile,

         14  obviously, in that instance, what happens?

         15                 MR. MORRIS:  The website and the

         16  Police Department notification process, although

         17  they are not separate, they operate and there is a

         18  separate chain there that goes on, and I do not want

         19  to delve into what the Sexual Offender Monitoring

         20  Unit does as far as they way they receive it, but

         21  the website information is on a different timeline

         22  then the Police Department information.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Now, without

         24  going into the website for the moment, if there is a

         25  pedophile, the vulnerable population would be
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          2  children, moves into the district, this information

          3  is given to you, what type of community notification

          4  do you do?

          5                 MR. MORRIS:  We will look at the

          6  offender, who's package we receive.  Then what

          7  happens is we will make a local notification in our

          8  particular borough, I am from Queens South, we will

          9  look at it, we will make a notification to the local

         10  Community Affairs Officers, and then they will reach

         11  out to entities within their local communities and

         12  notify them that this person has moved into their

         13  community.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  You are not

         15  directly notifying schools?  You are directly

         16  notifying the Community Affairs Offices, and it is

         17  their job to notify the schools?

         18                 MR. MORRIS:  In our particular

         19  situation, yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Let me just try

         21  to flush that out a little bit.

         22                 So, you will notify, if someone moves

         23  into a certain location, you notify the Community

         24  Affairs Offices in every precinct in that zip code,

         25  or is there a geographical area that you look at,
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          2  how is that determination made?

          3                 MR. MORRIS:  We will notify the

          4  precinct of residence of the offender, then what it

          5  is, is we have a list of mandatory notifications

          6  that we in the borough require the precinct to make.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Which are?

          8                 MR. MORRIS:  Well, it would include

          9  the Department of Educations Regional Safety

         10  Administrator, and then we have certain overheads,

         11  the Archdiocese involving parochial schools, Board

         12  of Jewish Education to address Jewish schools.  We

         13  have a Lutheran school notification, and then any

         14  other group that the precinct commander feels would

         15  be necessary at that point.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  So, you notify

         17  the local precinct, and their outreach people are

         18  mandated to notify the groups you just mentioned in

         19  their precinct?

         20                 MR. MORRIS:  Yes, Sir.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  What about if

         22  this person lives on the border of a precinct

         23                 MR. MORRIS:  We would amend the

         24  situation depending, as was testified before,

         25  everything is a case by case basis, so we would look
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          2  at that.  These notifications that I just elicited

          3  here, cover the entire borough, so, in other words,

          4  the people whom we are notifying here are not

          5  necessarily bound by precinct boundaries.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  There is no

          7  discretion there? The Community President must

          8  notify those groups, there is obviously discretion

          9  as to other groups, community civic groups and

         10  things like that?  Once they make that notification,

         11  are you involved in any other way, in determining

         12  whether or not the schools are doing follow up, the

         13  Diocese is doing any follow up? Do you do anything

         14  else other than just notify, who in fact do you

         15  notify, the Principle of the school?

         16                 MR. MORRIS:  These are overhead

         17  people whom have been designated to receive the

         18  notification from the Police Department.  They, in

         19  turn, have their own notification process beyond

         20  that.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  And you are not

         22  involved in that process?

         23                 MR. MORRIS:  No, Sir.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  So, each school

         25  could potentially, as far as you know, have a

                                                            23

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  different procedure which is involved when they are

          3  notified?

          4                 MR. MORRIS:  I do not know the answer

          5  to that.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Would anyone

          7  have any knowledge about what the procedure is in

          8  individual schools once they are notified?

          9                 MR. FEINBLATT:  I think that that is

         10  a type of question that is most appropriately posed

         11  to the Department of Education, what the individual

         12  practice is.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Well, we have

         14  discussed this before.  We will be requiring that

         15  information from the Board of Education.  I thought

         16  it was clear prior to this hearing that we would be

         17  delving into that, and that the Department of

         18  Education would not be here, and hoped to have

         19  someone who could answer that question from the

         20  Police Department, since it does oversee the safety

         21  of our children.  Apparently the was a

         22  miscommunication, so we will be requiring that

         23  information from the Board of Ed, subsequent to this

         24  hearing.

         25                 Let me jump over to, I have many more
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          2  questions but, jump over to my colleague Jim Oddo,

          3  for a few questions.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Thank you, Mr.

          5  Chairman, and if I may without sounding too self-

          6  serving, it is not that far back in this Committee's

          7  history where trying to get the previous Chairman to

          8  have a hearing on matters like this was like pulling

          9  teeth.  So, I want to thank you for your persistent,

         10  and consistent support of the good guys in this

         11  town.

         12                 Mr. Feinblatt, thank you for your

         13  testimony and the good work that your office does

         14  and the men and women of the Police Department.

         15                 My question is related, obviously, to

         16  Megan's Law but it is a little bit different, in

         17  that I was struck by your testimony regarding the

         18  STOP Program, and your one sentence in particular,

         19  which I think is the heart of the matter here.  The

         20  point is simple, we are not going to wait for sex

         21  offenders to rape again, and you consistently said

         22  in your testimony how good of a tool Megan's Law is.

         23

         24                 My question is, does the

         25  Administration see other tools, legislative and
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          2  otherwise, out on the horizon that they are

          3  advocating and supporting, and specifically, does

          4  the Administration have a position on sexually

          5  violent predator legislation that has been kicking

          6  around Albany for around a decade now, where the

          7  State Senate consistently passes it, and it dies in

          8  the Assembly?  Has the Administration lobbied

          9  Speaker Silver, does the Administration have a

         10  position on that bill, and would not a Sexually

         11  Violent Predator Act go a step beyond Megan's Law

         12  and, essentially, provide the children and men and

         13  women of this City a better level of protection, a

         14  level of protection that is afforded children, men

         15  and women in 16 states across this nation?

         16                 MR. FEINBLATT:  While it is

         17  absolutely clear that Megan's Law is a good tool, as

         18  I stated, it is not a perfect tool, and so there is

         19  a number of pieces of legislation that I could

         20  imagine being passed in Albany that would strengthen

         21  our ability to prosecute sexual offenders.

         22                 Let me give you some examples.

         23  Clearly today we have testified about some changes

         24  to Megan's Law that clearly would strengthen a good

         25  tool, and make a good tool a great tool.  But,
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          2  beyond that, there are some other pieces of

          3  legislation that I think would go a far way.

          4                 Number one on my list would actually

          5  be to expand the number of crimes for which we can

          6  take DNA evidence.  Right now, it is severely

          7  limited but we know that if we would have expanded

          8  the group of crimes for which we could take DNA

          9  evidence and enter it into the DA Databases, that we

         10  would be far more effective in prosecuting sexual

         11  offenses, as well as other cases, as well.

         12                 Second on my list, I think, if I were

         13  ranking them, would be to amend the statute of

         14  limitations.  While the Chairman has congratulated

         15  us on the John Doe Project, and I appreciate that, I

         16  want to be absolutely clear, that the John Doe

         17  Project was born out of frustration about the

         18  statute of limitations, and

         19  that--.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Mr.

         21  Commissioner, you probably realize that based on

         22  your recommendation, I did introduce a resolution to

         23  the Full Council, passed it up to Albany, and we are

         24  in complete agreement with eliminating the statute

         25  of limitations.
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          2                 MR. FEINBLATT:  And, so, while I

          3  think that while this Administration is not looking

          4  for a wholesale turning back of the statute of

          5  limitations, it seems to us that in cases where DNA

          6  evidence is available, the statute of limitations

          7  ought to be eliminated, so, there is still much to

          8  do on the legislative front to improve our ability

          9  to prosecute these cases.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Well, two quick

         11  follow- ups then.  One, what is the Administration

         12  doing to advocate those two positions, and two,

         13  specifically, I would like a response to what the

         14  Administrations position is on the sexually violent

         15  predator legislation?

         16                 MR. FEINBLATT:  On the sexually

         17  violent predator legislation, I would have to look

         18  at the current forms of the legislation.  I am not

         19  familiar with it, I would be delighted to take a

         20  look at it, obviously.  And, on the other fronts, on

         21  both the DNA expansion, the statute of limitations

         22  issue, and strengthening Megan's Law, I am not sure

         23  we could get much more vocal on those issues.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Mr. Chairman,

         25  may I ask one other question?

                                                            28

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Sure.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  This one

          4  specific question, we had an incident in Staten

          5  Island where an individual, I forget what level he

          6  was but an individual moved from one borough to

          7  Staten Island.

          8                 Could you just run through for me the

          9  requirements of that individual?  How much time he

         10  has to re- register, or to notify about his new

         11  location?  Because apparently the community got it

         12  from some sort of inappropriate means before there

         13  was actual formal notification from the PD or from

         14  the Department of Ed.

         15                 MS. MORLEY:  The offender has ten

         16  days to notify DCJS, and when we get notified that

         17  an offender has moved the SOMA Unit will

         18  redisseminate to the patrol borough where he moves

         19  to, and even within that same patrol borough, if he

         20  changes locations within, we will send a whole new

         21  package out on him.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Thank you, Mr.

         23  Chairman. Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Thank you.  We

         25  have also been joined by Council Members Monserrate

                                                            29

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  from Queens, Gennaro from Queens, Dilan and Gentile,

          3  so thank you.

          4                 Commissioner, according to the state

          5  law, as far as I understand it, the police are not

          6  mandated to do any of the notification that you just

          7  mentioned, is that correct?

          8                 MR. FEINBLATT:  Yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Which is part

         10  of the reason why I have introduced the resolution,

         11  to mandate that, and we commend you for doing at

         12  least that notification.

         13                 Now, we discussed pedophiles and let

         14  me discuss non pedophiles, I also downloaded someone

         15  from the Internet, who moved into my district, who

         16  raped five women over 18, and in that type of

         17  situation, obviously, you go through the process you

         18  went through before, who do you notify then?

         19                 MR. MORRIS:  We have in Queens South,

         20  we have a required minimum level of notification, as

         21  I spoke of before, and that would also include the

         22  District Manager and the Community Council

         23  President.

         24                 We would still also notify the

         25  schools, in a hypothetical situation like that,
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          2  figuring that the wider the notification, the wider

          3  the dissemination, the greater the safety involved

          4  here.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  So, under your

          6  policy, the Community Affairs Officers are mandated

          7  to notify the District Manager and the schools, as

          8  you mentioned, and do they do any other sort of

          9  notification?

         10                 MR. MORRIS:  That would be left to

         11  the discretion of the individual precinct CO, the

         12  Precinct Commanding Officer.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Because in New

         14  Jersey, as you probably know, the police are

         15  involved in something called Active Notification,

         16  where they actually go door to door and alert the

         17  affected communities as to the presence of these

         18  offenders to use a word I was not thinking of, but

         19  okay, offenders.  What is your position on that?

         20                 MS. MORLEY:  We do not do door to

         21  door notification. The law provides for us to notify

         22  entities with vulnerable populations, so, most of

         23  the entities that we define are, basically,

         24  organizations;  Boy Scouts, Girl Scouts, many times

         25  we will, if Safe Horizons is in the community, we
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          2  will look at that as an entity with a vulnerable

          3  population, so there is no door to door provision

          4  for neighbors in our present law, the way it is

          5  written, and I think it is also a balance between

          6  the safety of everyone in the City.

          7                 The way the law is written now, we

          8  believe is effective.  The way we are using it, we

          9  believe, is effective with our dissemination policy.

         10                 When you look at some of the cases

         11  across the nation where exact addresses are given

         12  out, there is many problems.  There have been

         13  innocent people attacked because they believe that

         14  person is a sex offender, when the sex offender, in

         15  fact has moved maybe three months before, or in

         16  fact, never lived there.  This sex offenders not

         17  that with the work I do, I am sympathetic towards

         18  them but there are ones that have their house burned

         19  down.  A number of examples of the wrong people

         20  getting beat up, so I think, the way the law is now

         21  and they way we are executing it, is effective

         22  because there are situations where, perhaps,

         23  mandated notifications might not be the appropriate

         24  thing, and one of the cases, perhaps, may be if a 21

         25  year old has consensual sex with a 16 year old, the

                                                            32

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  16 year old cannot consent because the law is less

          3  than 17, is it appropriate to give that offenders

          4  photo out in a situation like that?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Our resolution

          6  only calls for mandated notification regarding Level

          7  3's, and certain Level 2's, which would eliminate

          8  the situation you just referred to, I agree with you

          9  there.

         10                 But, let me just ask you a question.

         11  Are you saying that state law prevents you from

         12  doing community notification, an active door to door

         13  notification?

         14                 MS. MORLEY:  The way it is worded in

         15  the law is "entities with vulnerable populations".

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Well, I should

         17  ask Commissioner Feinblatt, and your legal

         18  interpretation of that is that you are not allowed

         19  to alert individuals?

         20                 MR. FEINBLATT:  That is how we have

         21  interpreted it.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Well, then that

         23  resolution again, then, I do not have a legal

         24  opinion of that yet because I am just hearing about

         25  it but we will amend our resolution to ask Albany to
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          2  allow you to alert individuals.

          3                 Now, what I am hearing so far is that

          4  there is some sort of notification but as a parent

          5  and as community members who are sitting up, we are

          6  not seeing that notification.  Now, whether that is

          7  because the police department is not doing its job,

          8  and I am not accusing them of that right now, or

          9  whether the District Manager is getting notified,

         10  and the schools are getting notified and they are

         11  not alerting the parents, parents are not getting

         12  these notifications.  Women's groups are not getting

         13  these notifications.  None of my community groups

         14  that I visit on a nightly basis, and we all do, have

         15  these notifications.  They do not give them out, and

         16  we are trying to get to the bottom of it, why that

         17  is.  There are too many people in the communities

         18  who are not aware of the vicious predators living

         19  among them.

         20                 Let me go to Council Member Katz.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Thank you, Mr.

         22  Chair, and just two little side notes.

         23                 I was actually the first sponsor of

         24  the Sexual Violent Predator Bill up in Albany when

         25  it became an issue.  I believe it was Kansas, where
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          2  a sexual predator said, "Please do not let me out of

          3  jail, I am going to continue to rape young girls if

          4  you do," and we had no mechanism for keeping him in

          5  jail, so, as much as we can do to work with you in

          6  order to make sure that that law is passed in

          7  Albany, we would appreciate it.

          8                 I was also up there in 1996, when

          9  Megan's Law was debated for years, and then finally

         10  passed on the House floor, and we, I specifically

         11  remember that we never intended, yes, I started when

         12  I was 12, we never intended for the Megan's Law to

         13  only mean entities.  So, I think it is interesting,

         14  Mr. Chair, that the interpretation has been that the

         15  Police Department or whoever, can only inform

         16  entities because the debate really was that, how

         17  much can the police tell the community, is it going

         18  to be individual houses, is it going to be only

         19  schools, you know, things of that nature.

         20                 Mr. Chair, do you want to welcome the

         21  class?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Let me welcome

         23  the class and alert--.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  I will yield my

         25  time for a second.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Alert the

          3  people who are testifying to the fact that we have

          4  children.

          5                 So children, welcome, this is a group

          6  from P.S. 2 in Queens, correct, which is around the

          7  corner from the place I lived for the last ten years

          8  of my life.  Welcome down to City Hall. This is the

          9  Student Council?  My daughter is in the Student

         10  Council in P.S. 188, so I know how hard you have

         11  worked to be in the Student Council, and what you

         12  do.  We welcome you here today.

         13                 This is the Public Safety Committee

         14  of the New York City Council, and we have oversight

         15  over the Police Department, which is why you see all

         16  these uniforms sitting in front of you and over

         17  there, and they are our friends.  These are good

         18  people, and we are trying to determine today whether

         19  certain laws are working and whether they need to be

         20  changed.

         21                 So, we are going to keep in mind that

         22  we have children present as we discuss this and

         23  certain, because there are some adult topics that we

         24  sometimes touch upon here also.  But, in general, we

         25  are working together with the Police Department to
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          2  try to keep our communities safe, and we are trying

          3  to find out how they do their job and whether we can

          4  make any improvements in that.               So, I

          5  am glad you guys are here today with us, and we are

          6  going to continue with Council Member Katz who is

          7  our great Councilwoman also from Queens.  Give us

          8  one moment here.  Well, I will come back to you to

          9  ask questions that you might want to ask again

         10  later.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Thank you very

         12  much.  Keeping in mind the audience of today, I

         13  think that you will probably be able to understand

         14  my questions, even though we are trying not to be

         15  that explicit as we speak with our school here.

         16                 It is so nice to welcome the Student

         17  Council here, and we look forward to having you in

         18  these very chambers one day after you grow up and

         19  get to run against us.

         20                 If I can just continue my questioning

         21  then.  We talked a little bit about discretion and

         22  how much the discretion is from the Police

         23  Department as far as who we notify and how we are

         24  told.  The only thing I was concerned about is, is

         25  there a standard throughout the City of New York as
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          2  to how each Borough Command does it?

          3                 Number one because, Inspector Morley,

          4  who Morris, from Queens?  You talked about how in

          5  your borough we would notify the schools, and I am

          6  just curious as to is there a standard throughout

          7  the City on how it is done, number one.

          8                 And, number two, I am also curious as

          9  to after the Borough Command makes its decision, how

         10  much gets down to the precinct levels, as far as how

         11  the decision was come up with, in other words, let's

         12  just say the Borough Command makes the decision that

         13  only the precinct needs to be notified, and not the

         14  schools and not this, how much does the Captain

         15  really know so that he or she may also use their

         16  discretion on how they deal with it in the

         17  community?  So, standards and how it goes downwards.

         18                 MR. MORRIS:  The one standard in the

         19  dissemination process is that the decision is made

         20  by the Borough Commanders.  As you are well aware

         21  there are eight Borough Commanders throughout the

         22  City, and when the Police Department procedures were

         23  set up, they were set up to hinge upon that Borough

         24  Commanders decision, and he or she was always

         25  integral to the dissemination process, and that
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          2  person would make the decision for their individual

          3  borough. As to absolute standards throughout the

          4  City, that is the standard, the Borough--.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  The Borough

          6  Command decides that?

          7                 MR. MORRIS:  Yes, yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Uses their

          9  discretion on that?

         10                 MR. MORRIS:  And that is the way the

         11  department procedure has always been set up since

         12  this law began.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:   Maybe you are

         14  the more appropriate person to ask, is there a

         15  reason for that, that there has not been established

         16  standards throughout the City, or is it because each

         17  Borough Command really is so different in the

         18  community that they serve?

         19                 MR. MORRIS:  I think it is reflective

         20  of the fact that we in the Police Department have 76

         21  different precincts, as you well know.  Where, in

         22  turn, we are divided into eight different patrol

         23  boroughs, and that is all done so that we can better

         24  serve the individual communities.  Certainly each

         25  precinct is different from, one from another, and
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          2  each borough is different, from one from another.

          3  So, I think the thought was that who better to

          4  determine what the needs of the local community are

          5  than that Borough Commanding Officer who is out

          6  there all the time?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  I just want not

          8  meant to be questioning today evidently.  I do find

          9  that just a little bit disconcerning (sic) only

         10  because it would seem to me then that if you have a

         11  person getting out of jail that raped, for instance,

         12  a 12 year old but also sexually abused in different

         13  ways than a three year old, then there may be

         14  different commands that say, "Well, maybe we should

         15  notify women", and this was, or another command that

         16  might say, "We should only notify the schools

         17  because it is really a child molestation issue", and

         18  it would seem that there might be some discrepancy

         19  then amongst the Borough Commands as to how that

         20  information flows downward.  And, at least for us as

         21  a City Council, then to be able to go into our

         22  districts and say, "Well, you should be notified",

         23  and this way there does not seem to be that much

         24  consistency, and maybe it is not a problem, so, we

         25  need you to tell us that.
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          2                 MR. MORRIS:  The decisions of the

          3  individual Borough Commanding Officers are based,

          4  largely, on the investigative package that the Sex

          5  Offender Monitoring Unit provides to that Borough

          6  Commanding Officer.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  So, that is

          8  consistent then.

          9                 MR. MORRIS:  So, in that way, there

         10  is consistency there in the process.  It is not just

         11  the individual Borough CO getting a blank piece of

         12  paper and making that decision, the decision is

         13  based on that investigatory package.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  And I assume

         15  there is recommendations that also come with the

         16  investigatory package as far as what their

         17  suggestions may be?

         18                 MS. MORLEY:  What we have is a form,

         19  and after it goes to the Sex Offender Monitoring

         20  Unit, it goes to the Borough Special Victims Squad

         21  for that borough, and they assess the whole package

         22  to determine if this offender would strike again,

         23  what the vulnerable population would be.

         24                 So, if this is an offender that does

         25  both kids and adults, right on the form we will say
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          2  his MO, and who is at risk to help the Borough

          3  Commander to decide where in his community it should

          4  be disseminated, and it also goes down to the local

          5  precinct because, quite frankly, nobody knows that

          6  better then that Precinct Commander, that he has

          7  that day care center, that the borough or Special

          8  Victims or SOMU does not even know exists there.  He

          9  knows he has a local community group of victim

         10  services, so that is the other end, why it has to

         11  filter that whole process, so we do not miss

         12  anything.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Who is it that

         14  interpreted the word "entity" in the state law?

         15  Would that be our City that does it, or would that

         16  be an entity on the state level that we consult

         17  with?

         18                 MS. MORLEY:  My understanding from

         19  when this was first put into effect, there were

         20  committees involved in the City, the Police

         21  Department, and that is basically since day one what

         22  the interpretation has been, as we understand it.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Do we know if

         24  there, how other entities do it, and how other

         25  localities, excuse me not entities, how other
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          2  localities do it in the State of New York?  Like is

          3  there any locality in the State of New York, and as

          4  an attorney myself, understanding that things can be

          5  interpreted in different ways, is there any locality

          6  in the State of New York that has interpreted this

          7  law to mean that they can go door to door if they

          8  deem it necessary?

          9                 MR. FEINBLATT:  I do not know the

         10  answer to it but I do know that there has been no

         11  litigation on this issue.

         12                 I was not in Albany at the time that

         13  Megan's Law was passed but entity, as far as I know,

         14  has never been interpreted to mean a person.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  I mean, what is

         16  interesting, and just for my colleagues, is that

         17  there have been private

         18  not- for- profits or organizations that have taken

         19  the information, and gone door to door in

         20  communities.

         21                 I know the Guardian Angels did that

         22  in Jersey, and a few civics did it in New York.

         23  They are allowed to do it, I guess, because they are

         24  not the government, and so, it is a little easier in

         25  that way.
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          2                 I would be interested, Mr. Chair, of

          3  knowing if there are any other localities in the

          4  state of New York that have interpreted this law to

          5  mean that they can do door to door, if they deem it

          6  necessary.  Because, I am assuming that there are

          7  areas, for instance, in Schenectady or Sheman

          8  County, and all over the state of New York, that do

          9  not really have a lot of the entities that we have

         10  in the City of New York, I mean, civic associations

         11  are not statewide, I know some of us might find that

         12  hard to believe.  So, there has to be some mechanism

         13  that they are using in other parts of the state to

         14  allow for door to door, even if it is the

         15  interpretation of entity, in just a different way.

         16  I would be curious to know if you have any research

         17  on that, as well?

         18                 MR. FEINBLATT:  Well, clearly, we

         19  know that probably private dissemination occurs.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Right.  Right,

         21  but again, I would be interested how do other

         22  localities get the information out if there is no

         23  civics, or police precinct councils or things like

         24  that?

         25                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Very good

          3  questions, Councilmember.

          4                 I am going to look into the law

          5  regarding that because it seems very unclear.  Is it

          6  the City Council, if I hold up a picture of this guy

          7  who came from the internet, am I notifying an

          8  entity, am I notifying an individual, can I be

          9  arrested?  I do not know, and we should know that,

         10  so, that is something we are going to be looking

         11  into.

         12                 Councilmember Gentile.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Thank you.

         14  We are not notified as local officials of the

         15  registry.

         16                 What happens in the case where

         17  someone, it just happened this week or last week,

         18  someone called my office asking for the Sex Offender

         19  Registry List for the area, what do we tell them?

         20  Just go to the website or?

         21                 MS. MORLEY:  The website, you can

         22  refer them to the website, you can refer him, for

         23  the Level 3's that are subject to dissemination to

         24  the NYPD's Foil Unit at 1 Police Plaza, and if they

         25  have the name of the offender, with an identifying
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          2  piece of information such as his social security

          3  number, his date of birth, or exact address, they

          4  can actually call the 1- 800 phone number. But,

          5  probably, the best information on Level 3's is on

          6  that website.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  And Level

          8  3's are only on the website?

          9                 MS. MORLEY:  Correct.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Website only

         11  has Level 3's.

         12                 MS. MORLEY:  Correct, and the phone,

         13  if you have a name, if you call that 800 number,

         14  they will tell you, the only information that you

         15  can disseminate on a Level 1, is through that 1- 800

         16  number.  The Police Department is not allowed to

         17  disseminate any information on the low risk

         18  offenders but if you call that 800 number, they will

         19  tell you that the person is on the registry, but you

         20  have to have the name and another identifying piece

         21  of information for that.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  And then as

         23  far as Level 2's, you cannot get them on the

         24  website.

         25                 MS. MORLEY:  You cannot get them on
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          2  the website. You can call that number, and they will

          3  tell you he is a Level 2, or you can get them

          4  through when we disseminate to the community on

          5  them.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Okay, so

          7  would the Borough Commanders also--.

          8                 MS. MORLEY:  Borough Commanders get

          9  Level 3's and Level 2's that are subject to

         10  dissemination.  Because of a court injunction, they

         11  are not all subject to dissemination.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Okay, so

         13  they may not, I do not think this individual was

         14  interested in a particular person, he is a parent

         15  from a local parochial school.

         16                 MS. MORLEY:  The best source for

         17  somebody who is interested in who lives in, go to

         18  that website and put in your zip code or your

         19  borough, and they will give you all the Level 3's.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  All Level

         21  3's but if Level 2's, it takes more investigation to

         22  get the Level 2's, or the Level 1's for that matter.

         23                 MS. MORLEY:  Right, the only

         24  information they can possibly get on Level 1's is if

         25  they have the name themselves first, and one of

                                                            47

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  those other pieces of info to call in that 800

          3  number that DCJS runs.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  And what

          5  more information do you get on a Level 2?

          6                 MS. MORLEY:  Level 2 you can get the

          7  approximate zip code, you do not get the exact

          8  address, you get the zip code, you get the MO,

          9  similar to the sheet the Chairman has without the

         10  exact address.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Without the

         12  exact address, okay.

         13                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Let me just

         15  clarify something we were just discussing.

         16                 The only people bound by this entity

         17  aspect, Melinda, are law enforcement, so, "law

         18  enforcement can only give to an entity with a

         19  vulnerable population related to the nature of the

         20  offense committed by the sex offender.  Any entity

         21  receiving the information", and I would assume that

         22  would be schools or civic groups since they are not

         23  law enforcement, "on a sex offender may disclose or

         24  further disseminate such information at its

         25  discretion".  I am not sure how much that helps.
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          2                 No, the local precincts the law

          3  enforcement.  You had another question?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  The other

          5  question I had, I was remiss in not asking this, in

          6  your opinion since you are the experts on the topic,

          7  would it be helpful if the law was changed to allow

          8  for door to door, and for actual direct

          9  communication into the precincts?

         10                 MS. MORLEY:  I think what we have is

         11  effective.  I think the danger of going door to door

         12  is that maybe only that block would be notified, and

         13  these offenders travel.  I think notifying of the

         14  zip code alerts the whole public, that there is a

         15  risk in that community.  I think the way we are

         16  disseminating has been effective, we do have

         17  discretion, but the general rule that we do use is

         18  that we do disseminate.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  You said notify

         20  the zip code, so, but it is really the entities

         21  within the zip code, right?  So you could add this

         22  to the list as opposed to displacing the entity

         23  notification, so anyway, in other words you really

         24  do believe that it is effective the way it is,

         25  basically?  All right, thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  I think,

          3  unfortunately, what we are hearing is that the

          4  police have discretion to give to entities, entities

          5  then have discretion, and parents and the vulnerable

          6  communities, maybe if they are women or older

          7  people, are just in many cases not getting notified

          8  because of all this discretion that is out there.

          9                 Councilman Dilan, did you have a

         10  question?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN:  I withdraw the

         12  question because it was actually the same question

         13  that, the last question that Councilmember Katz had

         14  asked.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Councilmember

         16  Quinn.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  I might have

         18  missed this point, I am sorry.  If an entity is a

         19  public school, they cannot give out the info, right,

         20  because, aren't they part of government?           MS

         21  . MORLEY:  No, the public schools, I mean, I have

         22  people calling me all the time because they know

         23  what I do, "Susan, I just got this notice from my

         24  school", so they do disseminate and once we

         25  disseminate to the entity from the law enforcement
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          2  perspective, they are allowed to disseminate to whom

          3  they choose, as long as it is not used to harass the

          4  offender.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Right, right,

          6  okay.

          7                 MS. MORLEY:  So, there is

          8  dissemination going on all the time, and the Sex

          9  Offender Monitoring Unit receives regular calls from

         10  the community on, "we were just told about this

         11  offender, what can we do?"  So, it is going on.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  I just wanted

         13  to check on whether the school being a public

         14  school, whether that would change it.  Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  We will be

         16  asking for information from the school system

         17  because our research indicates that there is a memo

         18  out from the 80's which mandates that the parents be

         19  notified but our anecdotal evidence is that some

         20  schools do send home notifications, some schools put

         21  notices up on the bulletin boards, some do not do

         22  any type of notifications, and so we will be looking

         23  into what exactly they do in following up with that.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  I can just add

         25  and I only know this but one of the schools in my
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          2  district did know that there was somebody on Megan's

          3  list living, either it was, I cannot remember now,

          4  it was a couple of years ago, on the block or one

          5  block over, in that one instance I did know that

          6  that school did not do notification on that.  Not

          7  because of that necessarily but the principle has

          8  since changed and, I think, the school has changed

          9  but under that principle they were not doing it.  I

         10  cannot speak to all the one's in my school, so.  It

         11  is not a police issue, obviously, but there is a

         12  lack of consistency I think there.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Absolutely,

         14  there is a second aspect to Megan's Law, as you

         15  know, which mandates education of the population, as

         16  to what to do with this notification.  How is that

         17  being implemented?

         18                 MS. MORLEY:  Well, our Sex Offender

         19  Monitoring Unit goes regularly out to community

         20  meetings and we also train our own people, within,

         21  at the various training courses.  The state actually

         22  has a pamphlet that has information on Megan's Law,

         23  so, we go out to community meetings, Tommy Burkey's

         24  (phonetic) is out regularly.  I myself have gone,

         25  Sergeant Herzberg (phonetic), the other Sergeant in
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          2  SOMU have been out.  We had training of the training

          3  officers recently, all the training Sergeants

          4  throughout the City have come in and one of the part

          5  of the training was the sex offender.  We train the

          6  highest levels of the Police Department, the Borough

          7  Commanders, the District Attorneys and myself have

          8  been going borough by borough doing training with

          9  the whole Special Victims area, including the Sex

         10  Offender Registration Act, and what everybody's

         11  duties are, and what the can tell the public and

         12  what they cannot.

         13                 So, there is various different

         14  groups, the Communities Affairs Officers are the

         15  ones, day to day, that are doing this, for the most

         16  part, in the boroughs, and they are certainly up on

         17  how the public can access information with this.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  When you

         19  provide notice to a vulnerable entity, do you at

         20  that point give them any educational materials

         21  regarding what to do with that notice, options,

         22  education for the public that they are not supposed

         23  to go and burn a house down and things like that?

         24                 MR. MORRIS:  We are always cautious

         25  in dealing with the public to make sure that
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          2  everybody acts responsibly.  Most of the

          3  disseminations made by the Community Affairs

          4  Officers are usually made to people whom the

          5  Community Affairs Officer has an ongoing

          6  relationship with.  This is already a pre-

          7  established relationship.  It is not a cold call

          8  situation, and members of the community have been

          9  educated to act responsibly about this.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Okay,

         11  Councilmember Foster.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER:  Thank you,

         13  good morning.

         14                 I just have a few, I guess, logistic

         15  questions.  Do most sex offenders return to the

         16  community where they initially engaged in the crime,

         17  or do they relocate somewhere else?

         18                 Out of the five boroughs, which

         19  borough has the most sex offenders registered living

         20  in the community?

         21                 And, the last question is, does the

         22  Sex Offender Monitoring Unit have a person in each

         23  borough or is it Citywide, and you just go to

         24  boroughs or locations as needed?

         25                 MS. MORLEY:  I will try to remember
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          2  all the questions.

          3                 I will start with the numbers because

          4  that is the easiest.  Brooklyn has the highest

          5  number of sex offenders residing, registered sex

          6  offenders residing in it, followed by the Bronx,

          7  Manhattan, Queens and then Staten Island.  There is

          8  4,573

          9  registered sex offenders residing in the City

         10  presently, 4,573 registered sex offenders residing

         11  in the City right now.

         12                 As far as the Sex Offender Monitoring

         13  Unit, it is a centralized unit.  We have, with the

         14  creation of Special Victims Division last year, we

         15  created a Apprehension Team in that unit, and they

         16  have done fantastic work since that was created, and

         17  they were focused on the high risk sex offenders to

         18  get those that violate off the streets as quickly as

         19  possible, basically taking a zero tolerance policy

         20  with that.

         21                 We do not have SOMU person assigned

         22  in every borough but they are assigned to different

         23  boroughs, in other words, their responsibility, both

         24  the monitors and their Apprehension Team within

         25  SOMU, are assigned to monitor the offenders for
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          2  particular boroughs, so that they know they are a

          3  liaison with the person in the Queens Patrol Borough

          4  that handles it, for example, because Queens is here

          5  and there is also a Borough Special Victims Liaison

          6  to SOMU, so that everybody knows who to talk to and

          7  how to get this information out.  We find that works

          8  better, communication is better and they stay on top

          9  of their cases, rather than you got a case from

         10  Brooklyn today, you got a case from Queens tomorrow,

         11  it keeps them all focused.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER:  And do you

         13  know whether a sex offender tends to go back to the

         14  community in which they initially--.

         15                 MS. MORLEY:  I have not studied that.

         16    I mean, sometimes these people are coming out

         17  after a great deal of time served.  Some of them do

         18  go back, if they still have connections to the

         19  community, so, I cannot say that I absolutely

         20  studied that but they tend to go in the vicinity of,

         21  usually, to where they lived before because that is

         22  where they know.

         23                 Some of them come out and they go the

         24  shelters until they find a place to live, depending

         25  on how much time served, obviously if it is a short
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          2  time they are probably going back.  If they have

          3  been in for 20 years, they may have to find another

          4  place to live.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  We have

          6  discussed the STOP Program, and I think you just

          7  said about 4,500 are in New York City, 4,500 sex

          8  offenders, that is registered sex offenders?

          9                 MS. MORLEY:  Correct.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Now, before I

         11  get to that group, is there an amount of sex

         12  offenders who are not registered, not that have

         13  registered and have failed to keep up but who just

         14  have never registered to begin with?

         15                 MS. MORLEY:  Yes, we have registered

         16  sex offenders who have not mailed their letter back

         17  to Albany, and we have registered sex offenders that

         18  have failed to fulfill their every 90- day

         19  requirement.  The Level 3's are required to go into

         20  the SOMU Unit every 90 days to verify, in person,

         21  their address and we have offenders not in

         22  compliance.  Some of these are basically under

         23  investigation to determine why they are not

         24  compliant.  With the loophole in the law, if we go

         25  looking for them and they are at their address, if
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          2  they are a Level 1 and 2, we cannot arrest them. So,

          3  what we try to do with those is, we make them

          4  compliant.  So, we do spend a lot of resources to go

          5  there, to not be able to arrest them but to verify

          6  that they are there, and to make them compliant, to

          7  remove them from the list.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  So that is out

          9  of the 4,500, how many are non- compliant?

         10                 MS. MORLEY:  We have, presently, 230

         11  investigations going on to why these offenders are

         12  not compliant, so, it is about five percent.

         13  Further broken down, the high- risk offenders we

         14  have 33 offenders that we presently have active

         15  investigations for. That Level 3, we focus a lot of

         16  attention on, that rate is 3 percent that are

         17  fugitives.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Council member

         19  Oddo is concerned, as am I, as to how much money and

         20  how much resources has the Police Department devoted

         21  to finding not only those 33 but the entire 240.

         22                 MS. MORLEY:  Right, well, what we do

         23  when we have someone that is not compliant, first of

         24  all, the SOMU Unit will try to reach out to them

         25  immediately and do an investigation when we are
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          2  notified.  Sometimes it is an error on the mail, and

          3  it is readily apparent, for example, the offender's

          4  been registered for four years at West 21st Street,

          5  and suddenly the letter comes back but the letter

          6  was sent to East 21st Street, we are going to call

          7  that offender in and get him compliant.

          8                 The offenders that we cannot contact,

          9  we have a procedure where the local detective squad

         10  is assigned this case from SOMU, they are to

         11  immediately go out to see if that offender is at

         12  that address.  If they are not at that address, a

         13  complaint report is taken, a wanted card is dropped,

         14  and they immediately begin an investigation to find

         15  this offender.

         16                 In addition, so that is all the

         17  squads working on it, if there is a warrant

         18  involved, the warrant squad is notified. The Sex

         19  Offender Monitoring Unit Apprehension Team, for the

         20  Level 3's, they will look for them in addition to

         21  the local borough squad.  We did not want just six

         22  people for the whole City looking, we want the

         23  individual local squads that can go around that

         24  neighborhood on a regular basis looking for this

         25  offender.  And, many times they are there, it is
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          2  just, we have got to catch them there.  That is the

          3  situation with the Level 2's and 1's, where we will

          4  go five times, and guess what, we find out they have

          5  been living there, and we cannot arrest, and that is

          6  why the loophole in the law is a problem

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  That was

          8  actually my next question.  How many officers are in

          9  the Sex Offender Monitoring Unit, is it only six?

         10                 MS. MORLEY:  Twelve, presently.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Is it only six?

         12                 MS. MORLEY:  Twelve.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Oh, twelve.

         14                 MS. MORLEY:  Twelve, we have six that

         15  we consider monitors, and six that are on the

         16  Apprehension Team.

         17                 MR. FEINBLATT:  In my conversations

         18  around the state, it is easy to conclude that New

         19  York City approaches this more aggressively than any

         20  jurisdiction in this state, and under Sue Morley's

         21  direction, I think we are doing a extraordinary job

         22  of using Megan's Law as an extraordinarily effective

         23  tool, and I think that the STOP Program and the

         24  other work that she is doing is actually the envy of

         25  just about every jurisdiction in the state.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Again, let me

          3  commend you for the work you are doing to find

          4  these, the ones who are missing.

          5                 As you said, and I could verify that,

          6  I think you are doing the most aggressive work in

          7  the entire state when it comes to that, and I agree

          8  completely that this is such an important tool to

          9  prosecute these, probably the worst offenders that

         10  you could find for a non- violent crimes, before

         11  they go and do it again because, actually, I know

         12  you are not doctors, but do you have recidivist

         13  rates regarding these types of offenses with you

         14  today?

         15                 MR. FEINBLATT:  I do not have them

         16  with me today, but as you know from your own work as

         17  a prosecutor, I mean, this is a group that has very

         18  high recidivist rates, and particularly if you look

         19  within the Level 3 group, that is where you are

         20  going to see some very, very striking recidivism

         21  rates.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Exactly, it was

         23  asked by the press why is this different then a

         24  burglar moving in next store, and this is the major

         25  reason, this is a disease for the most part, and the
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          2  recidivist rates are higher than in any other area,

          3  and by using this and by doing what you are doing,

          4  we are able to put these people in jail before they

          5  commit a violent crime, which I think is a great

          6  thing.

          7                 We are done with our questions, and

          8  so we, oh I am sorry, we do, Councilwoman Quinn?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  I did not have

         10  a question, I just wanted to just add to the record

         11  your praise and support of the Special Victims Unit,

         12  Inspector Morley, and particularly Detective

         13  Piercehole (phonetic), who I want to very much say I

         14  am glad, have been just a huge asset to me in my,

         15  the Detective when I was at the anti- violence

         16  project and both the Inspector and the Detective,

         17  since I have been on the Council, we had a serial

         18  rapist in Chelsea who, that we know of, and I mean

         19  it might be worse attacked three women, two in the

         20  housing projects, one in a private residence, and it

         21  was really the solely, I think, the perpetrator was

         22  caught because of the way the Inspector has

         23  restructured the Special Victims Unit because he was

         24  also raping women in the Bronx and before the

         25  restructuring, there would not have been the
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          2  recognition of the pattern and the resources brought

          3  to bear, and it was a great relief to the Chelsea

          4  community when that was taken care of.  But, I just

          5  want to say I know whenever I, and I hope I do not,

          6  but whenever our office needs the help of Special

          7  Victims, they are always there whether it is making

          8  the arrest or coming to community meetings, meeting

          9  privately with victims, just one of the best parts

         10  of the Police Department, and I just wanted to add

         11  my voice the Chair's recognition.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Thank you.  One

         13  last question. We do have a resolution in about

         14  making this notification mandatory now.  As far as

         15  the Police Department is concerned, you have the

         16  discretion to do it and you do it, and so, you are

         17  doing the notification, or given the discretion to

         18  do under the law.  Whether or not the schools and

         19  the community groups are doing it is another story,

         20  but you are apparently using the discretion that you

         21  have to its fullest extent.  Do you support or

         22  oppose our resolution to change the law in Albany to

         23  make what you are doing mandatory?

         24                 MR. FEINBLATT:  I think that the

         25  conclusion that you have heard today is that what we

                                                            63

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  think we are doing is effective.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Pretty much

          4  what I thought the answer would be, which is why I

          5  did not ask it before until, so.             Okay,

          6  well again, thank you.  I know everyone wants the

          7  chance to thank you but I am not going to give that

          8  to them because we would be here all day.  Thank you

          9  very much for the work you have been doing and we

         10  look forward to continuing to work with you in this

         11  because it looks like we are on the same page here

         12  and we will see you again down the road.  Thank you.

         13                 Our next panel will be Harriet Lessel

         14  from the New York City Alliance Against Sexual

         15  Assault.  Actually it will not be a panel, it will

         16  just be Ms. Lessel.

         17                 Ms. Lessel, welcome, we appreciate

         18  having you with us here today.  I know you had to

         19  wait a little bit.  You were here early, I saw you

         20  coming into the building at 9 o'clock or so.  So

         21  thank you for coming down and the floor is yours.

         22                 MS. LESSEL:  Thank you.  My name is,

         23  as I said, well I did not say yet, is Harriet

         24  Lessel.  I am the Executive Director of the New York

         25  City Alliance Against Sexual Assault, and I would
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          2  like to thank the Public Safety Committee for this

          3  opportunity to come and speak today on Resolutions

          4  81 and 247.

          5                 The New York City Alliance Against

          6  Sexual Assault supports both resolutions.

          7                 Resolution 81 that supports

          8  increasing the penalties for sex offenders who fail

          9  to register with the state, and verify their address

         10  annually, we have heard how well it has been working

         11  to have these folks register in person and, I think

         12  that, that is a good thing to do.

         13                 Resolution 247 supports amending

         14  Megan's Law, to mandate that local law enforcement

         15  notify any entity with vulnerable populations

         16  related to the nature of the offense committed by

         17  Level 2 and 3 sex offenders and that local law

         18  enforcement provide education to those with whom

         19  they share such information.

         20                 While the Alliance does support

         21  Resolution 247, we do have some severe reservations

         22  about the ability of recipients who would receive

         23  information about sex offenders in their community

         24  to adequately address their safety concerns as a

         25  result of this knowledge.  And, I will talk a little
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          2  bit about what those reservations are.

          3                 I think the first has to do with the

          4  effect on the public of this notification.  I think

          5  that there is very little real public dialogue about

          6  sex offenses.  Most people do not know how to talk

          7  to their children about sexual violence or how their

          8  children can be kept safe.  You know, for instance,

          9  most sex offenses are committed on someone known to

         10  the offender.  Yet, this is rarely discussed or

         11  addressed.  This lack of knowledge will not be

         12  changed with the name, address and picture of the

         13  sexual offender, especially when that offender has

         14  really only committed his offenses, and I say he

         15  within his family, which is so often the case.  I

         16  think that much more information is necessary to

         17  help the public understand how sex offenses are

         18  committed and how they can keep themselves and their

         19  families safe.  There are so many good examples out

         20  there of programs and curriculums that can be

         21  utilized with the public, but the NYPD, like any law

         22  enforcement agency, would require resources in order

         23  to be able to educate the community about safety

         24  from sexual violence.  So, I am very glad that you

         25  put in your law that it should go along with
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          2  education because I think it is really extremely

          3  important.  I also have full faith in the staff of

          4  the NYPD Special Victims Liaison Unit, who would I

          5  believe, be responsible for these presentations, to

          6  them well because I know when they have been called

          7  upon to do them in the community, they have reached

          8  out to local resources such as their local rape

          9  crisis programs, and I think that that combination

         10  of law enforcement and local resources is really the

         11  best.

         12                 My second reservation concerns how a

         13  community can actually help an offender to not re-

         14  offend.  Megan's Law was created in order to

         15  increase safety to people and communities where sex

         16  offenders reside.  So, I think that the community

         17  has a stake in wanting sex offenders to not offend

         18  again.  Given the lack of knowledge that most

         19  community members, and the entities with vulnerable

         20  populations, about how to integrate the information

         21  about a known sex offender in the community, how

         22  that information is going to be utilized, and

         23  whether it ends up putting more pressure on a sex

         24  offender or contains that sex offenders behavior, I

         25  think is an open question. I mean, when we talk
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          2  about giving this information to principles, what

          3  kind of training have principles had in dealing with

          4  sex offenders, and even dealing, having let's say an

          5  educational forum in their schools about this?  I am

          6  not aware that this is happening, and certainly not

          7  on a consistent basis.  There might be some

          8  educational officials doing it but I am not sure

          9  that they really have a lot of information on how to

         10  do it well.

         11                 We believe very strongly that

         12  community supports are necessary to help offenders

         13  from re- offending, and that not enough attention

         14  has been paid to how that can be accomplished within

         15  a community.

         16                 So that in summary, without careful

         17  consideration of how people can utilize and

         18  integrate the information about sex offenders in

         19  their community, notification alone may cause

         20  potential harm both to the public and the sex

         21  offenders themselves.

         22                 The Alliance appreciates the Public

         23  Safety's Committees desire to keep communities safe

         24  from sexual violence, and we feel particularly

         25  strongly about the added provision to provide
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          2  notification within the context of a larger

          3  presentation on how to keep safe from sexual

          4  violence but prevention of sexual violence not only

          5  comes from helping people to reduce their risk,

          6  which is what the notification is about but by

          7  preventing the offenders from committing another

          8  crime.  So, thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Thank you, Ms.

         10  Lessel, and as you know but others may not, the

         11  reason we have that portion of our resolution

         12  regarding education is because we work closely with

         13  you, so thank you for your help, however, I thought

         14  we had put in enough after working with you to get

         15  more resounding support then I am reading.

         16                 What else can we do, within the

         17  context of our resolution to have your support?  We

         18  added the education requirement.

         19                 MS. LESSEL:  You do have the

         20  Alliance's support.  I just feel so strongly that

         21  when people are so, when individual members of the

         22  public are so concerned, you know when they learn

         23  about a sex offender in their community, that raises

         24  their anxiety a level, they do not know how to live

         25  with that information.  They do not know what to do
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          2  with that information, and I feel just very strongly

          3  that either should it be resources given to the NYPD

          4  to make sure that on a regular basis they get to

          5  provide those kinds of community presentations, if

          6  it means the opportunity to be able to look at

          7  curriculums, and maybe have something that the City

          8  is going to say, "This is the one that we want to

          9  have here in the City", but that I really think it

         10  is very important, especially when you are talking

         11  about the public, to help them feel better to have

         12  that in place.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE::  I agree.  You

         14  say here that there are many good examples of

         15  programs and curriculums to be utilized by the

         16  public, which ones do you prefer?

         17                 MS. LESSEL:  I do not have specific

         18  names of ones, but I know that even the Special

         19  Victims Liaison Unit, I know, has made some

         20  presentations to the communities.  We have in our

         21  library, a number of curriculums.  I mean, I can

         22  certainly provide informations on one's that I know

         23  that are out there.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Regarding the

         25  testimony you just heard, since you are with the New
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          2  York City Alliance Against Sexual Assault, how do

          3  you believe the present system is working with

          4  regard to community notification?

          5                 MS. LESSEL:  Well, I think that what

          6  the police described is a very good system, but

          7  again, I think where it is, perhaps, not as

          8  effective as it could be, is in that those, we are

          9  hearing how the different entities, well, I am not

         10  sure what groups, in fact, are being informed about

         11  sex offenders, and their ability to disseminate that

         12  information in a way that makes sense for those

         13  groups.  And, I do not think that there is

         14  consistency, so, I am not sure that every school is

         15  doing Sue was saying that she got calls.  The reason

         16  she gets calls is because people get that piece of

         17  paper, and their anxiety goes up, and they do not

         18  know what to do, and then I am sure that there are

         19  some schools that are not doing that at all.

         20                 It may be useful to have a standard

         21  throughout the City for schools, for instance, if

         22  they are being notified, and or, to maybe list the

         23  kinds of groups that we would want to see, that

         24  makes sense, because we know that those groups would

         25  be able to responsibility educate people, and
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          2  utilize that information.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  I cannot help

          4  but take advantage of the fact that we have such a

          5  good witness to ask this question, with your

          6  indulgence, again, it is a little slightly off the

          7  mark but, I mean obviously, the concept of notifying

          8  the public and then educating the public when there

          9  is a predator in its midst is a good idea, I mean,

         10  we should know if a sick SOB like Jesse Temendeques

         11  (phonetic) is living in Hamilton Township opposite

         12  the street of the Kanka family but, isn't Megan's

         13  Law essentially, sort of, waiting for the proverbial

         14  second shoe to drop?  I mean, it is great that we

         15  are notified and sometimes we are not, as the

         16  Chairman and others have pointed out, not done

         17  either entirely, or not done in a timely manner but

         18  I cannot help but take advantage of the fact, and

         19  ask you, the question I asked Mr. Feinblatt, isn't

         20  there a better way, in your testimony you comment

         21  about what the community can do to help an offender

         22  not to re- offend.  Isn't it in some instances the

         23  best thing the community can do is keep that

         24  offender away from the community completely?

         25                 So, my question specifically would
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          2  be, does the Alliance have a specific position on

          3  legislation like sexually violent predators, where

          4  you would take the worst of the worst and simply

          5  create a mechanism to, kind of, filter them back

          6  from just releasing them back into the community?

          7                 MR. LESSEL:  Well, I think the

          8  specially targeted offenders program, that comes out

          9  of the Mayor's office, because some sex offenders

         10  cannot live with the rest of us.  Their level of the

         11  kinds of crimes they commit are so heinous, and they

         12  cannot control themselves and they just cannot live

         13  in the public, with the public, so I think those,

         14  obviously, should not be.  But, I also think that

         15  there is a lot of work being done now on working

         16  with communities, on working with those lower- level

         17  offenders who could, with proper supports, not

         18  offend again because there is all different kinds of

         19  offenders, and psychological reasons why they do or

         20  do not offend, and I think, there is a lot more

         21  information about that, and there are some very

         22  interesting models out there, which are really

         23  looking at how to take those folks who might be able

         24  to live in the community, and provide them with

         25  supports so that they do not re- offend again,
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          2  because that is the true prevention.  Are you

          3  talking about the Civil Commitment Bill?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Yes.

          5                 MS. LESSEL:  My concerns about the

          6  Civil Commitment Bill were not taking a position on

          7  it.  My concerns about the Civil Commitment Bill is

          8  the danger to other mentally ill patients in mental

          9  hospitals from sex offenders who would be put there.

         10    I do not think those mental hospitals are in any

         11  way organized to treat or keep the rest of the

         12  residents safe, and I would want to hear more, I

         13  have talked a little bit to the folks in New Jersey,

         14  as you know, who have them, and I would want to have

         15  a longer conversation with them to hear how they

         16  thought that that has been working, but those have

         17  been my concerns.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  I appreciate

         19  your comments, and for the first portion of the

         20  question, I absolutely agree with you that you can

         21  dual- track these two issues, that certain

         22  offenders, whether they are Level 1 or Level 2, can

         23  be treated in a different manner, and certainly

         24  Level 3's should be treated differently.

         25                 With respect to the last point on the
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          2  civil commitment, what other states have done

          3  successfully has separated the populations.  In some

          4  states they have actually had the individuals, the

          5  predators who have been confined civilly in on a

          6  different pod in a state penitentiary, or whatever,

          7  and there is no comingling, and that creates,

          8  obviously, a space problem here in New York, and a

          9  money problem but I thank you for your comments on

         10  that.  Thank you.

         11                 MS. LESSEL:  Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Thank you, Mr.

         13  Oddo.

         14                 Council Member Quinn.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Thank you very

         16  much, Harriet, for your testimony today, and I know

         17  all the advise you give Public Safety and the Health

         18  Committee, as we look at the issues of sexual

         19  assault, from the lack of our public health system

         20  really having a comprehensive plan.  I mean, what

         21  you said about that we do not talk about it enough,

         22  I think that is part of the problem, and why I think

         23  it is great that the Chair has had so many hearings

         24  on this issue because it is obviously very

         25  uncomfortable to talk about for a whole host of
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          2  reasons but when you do not talk about it, then

          3  government does not do anything.  And, if you do not

          4  do anything, then you do not have consistency, and I

          5  just wanted to echo what you said about schools, and

          6  us really needing to figure out how we can come up

          7  with the best practices for schools, and then

          8  really, an appropriate protocol for schools because

          9  I have had many conversations with principles who,

         10  really great principles who are quite angst- ridden

         11  over this issue, do you know what I mean?  What is,

         12  from the level of X student did Y to another

         13  student, and I do not think, and the principle did

         14  not think it was really sexual violence but on

         15  paper, it may have been, and does she report, does

         16  she not report, and they have this information they

         17  do not know what to do with.  I think there is

         18  probably some irresponsible principles, as is always

         19  the case, but there are some who are very

         20  responsible who are really, really angst- ridden

         21  over what to do, and I think we need to pick up on

         22  your suggestion on that, to figure out how we can

         23  help those principles do the right thing, and know

         24  what the right thing is because there is really no

         25  training they have received that would have anything
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          2  to do with this.  So, I just wanted to echo that.

          3                 I would be interested at whatever

          4  point you could provide to us, to hear more about

          5  the curriculum issue because it would particularly,

          6  obviously with sexual harassment in general but

          7  particularly with pedophile sexual violence, you

          8  hear so much about that this is just a disease and a

          9  condition that can never be rehabilitated or rarely

         10  rehabilitated, so I could use education if there are

         11  things out there that work, if it is one, or two, or

         12  five percent of the time, for whatever it is, I

         13  could really use that information from the Alliance

         14  whenever you could provide it.

         15                 MS. LESSEL:  Yes, and obviously, I am

         16  not an expert on sex offenders but what my

         17  understanding is that it is not, when sex offenders

         18  are living in the community, it is not just about

         19  the treatment, like the mental health treatment, it

         20  is a containment issue, and how we can look at all

         21  the resources we have to contain their behavior, and

         22  I would be happy to share that, or any other

         23  information with folks.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Yes, it is not

         25  the Alliance, you are much more victims services
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          2  focus but if you even had the names of those experts

          3  that then we could reach out to, that would be

          4  really helpful, I think.  Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Thank you.  Let

          6  me again point out that Council Member Quinn is the

          7  Chair of our Health Committee, and Council Member

          8  Oddo is our Minority Leader.  They are not members

          9  of this Committee.  They do not have to be here, or

         10  they get an absent mark or anything like that.  They

         11  are here, they have five other committees they sit

         12  on, they could be in their district, they are here

         13  because this is so important to them, and your

         14  testimony is, so, I thank them both for being here.

         15                 And, as I said, we look forward to

         16  continuing to work with you on this Bill as Council

         17  Member Quinn just said.  Just by having these

         18  hearings, we shed light on this issue.  We get

         19  people to talk about it, and we will now get this

         20  information from the schools, and we will continue

         21  to work to come up with a solution that we can all

         22  be proud of.  So, thank you for your help.

         23                 MS. LESSEL:  Thank you, and I

         24  appreciate the Councils ongoing interest.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Harriet,
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          2  before you go, tell the two council members who are

          3  still here about the names readings because I know

          4  they would want to do it.

          5                 MS. LESSEL:  Okay, I think she wants

          6  me to announce --.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  That is all

          8  right, I am stepping over agenda for one sec, but it

          9  is really a good thing.

         10                 MS. LESSEL:  It is a commercial

         11  break, that we are having a 24- hour reading of

         12  survivor stories in City Hall Park starting at noon,

         13  on April 13th, and going to noon on April 14th, and

         14  then we are going, and so we invite everybody to

         15  come and read at any hour of the day or night, and

         16  you can sign up to come and read, and then, of

         17  course, you have signed on, there is going to be a

         18  press conference at noon when we announce the series

         19  of hearings that the Council will be having in the

         20  different Committees of which Public Safety is one,

         21  and I thank you for that support, and when we will

         22  also have a Women's Issues Committee, as well, so I

         23  really invite you all to come and read.  It should,

         24  I am hoping it will do a lot to raise awareness

         25  about sexual violence in the City.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  It sounds like

          3  a very nobel project.  So, thank you again for

          4  coming down and testifying.

          5                 Our last witness is a local parent,

          6  who has never testified before.

          7                 Ms. Francine Felice you can come on

          8  up, who actually, I have never met personally yet.

          9  I am going to meet you as soon as this is done but

         10  who is the impetus behind this whole hearing because

         11  it was calls to my office from her and from people

         12  she spoke to that alerted me to the fact that these

         13  people are moving into my neighborhood and the

         14  parents were not really being informed.  So, she is

         15  here to mention, just to speak about her experience,

         16  and Ms. Felice, we thank you for coming down, and

         17  you can say whatever you want to say.  The floor is

         18  yours.

         19                 MS. FELICE:  When I found out the ex-

         20  offenders were living in my neighborhood, I called

         21  my children's school, and I asked them about parent

         22  notification.  They told me there was a loophole in

         23  the law, and they could not notify.  I did not

         24  accept that, so I researched it further, and

         25  although there is a policy in effect from the Board
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          2  of Education, it took two months before I got my

          3  principle to send out the notices.  They are being

          4  sent out today, we went head- to- head for two

          5  months before she was finally pushed to the point

          6  where she had to send them out.  She did not want

          7  to.  I called other schools in my area, and I found

          8  out that each school did something different.

          9  Catholic schools, middle, and high schools are not

         10  notifying at all.  Grade schools post the notices on

         11  bulletin boards, keep them in a file, or post them

         12  in a teachers lounge.  And out of all the schools I

         13  called, only two made notifications to parents, and

         14  they were sent home by backpack, with the children.

         15                 The people of parents for Megan's Law

         16  tell me that this is not the way to disseminate the

         17  information.  It needs to be mailed home with

         18  information on how to get more information.

         19                 Okay, the policy from the Board of

         20  Education is not being adhered to, and nothing is

         21  being done to enforce it.  The current policy is

         22  from 1998, and is being revised but revising the

         23  policy will not make a difference unless it is

         24  enforced, as well. We can write up whatever we want

         25  but if nobody enforces it, it is not going to
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          2  happen.

          3                 Now, on Long Island, when the Police

          4  Department gives the notification to the

          5  superintendent, the superintendent himself sends a

          6  notice to every postal patron in the district.  It

          7  does not go down to the principle level, it stays on

          8  the superintendent level, and where you were talking

          9  about door to door notification before, it might not

         10  be door to door notification, but everyone in the

         11  district gets a notice.  I do not know how they do

         12  that.

         13                 Information regarding Level 3 sex

         14  offenders is available to the public because they

         15  are ranked as high- risk and likely to offend again.

         16    And, while I understand that ex- offenders have a

         17  right to live somewhere, I also feel that it is our

         18  right to know where they live, and at the very

         19  least, the public needs to be educated on how to

         20  obtain information on ex- offenders in their area.

         21                 I know, as a parent, that it is my

         22  responsibility to teach my children to stay away

         23  from strangers but when a person moves in on your

         24  block, they are no longer a stranger, they are a

         25  neighbor, and I believe that having such information
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          2  available to everyone will make the difference in

          3  preventing future incidences.

          4                 And, if I could just say one more

          5  thing, a Level 3, ex- offender lives one- tenth of a

          6  mile from my children's school. He was convicted of

          7  doing something with a ten- year- old female.  He

          8  moved into Marine Terrace, Marine Terrace is based

          9  on your income when you move, your rent is based on

         10  your income.  He not only moved in there, he was the

         11  maintenance man.  Nobody knew he was an ex- offender

         12  until one of the people who lived in the building

         13  realized, hey, this guy does not belong here.  They

         14  brought it to the attention of the people who hired

         15  him, he was fired, he lost his apartment, and he is

         16  now living in Springfield Gardens.  He is no longer

         17  in Astoria, but had my principle sent out his notice

         18  on February 11th, when I handed it to her, that

         19  would have been two months less that this man was

         20  roaming around in my children's apartments.  I feel

         21  very strongly about this, you know I do.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  That is an

         23  amazing story, I thin we learned more from you,

         24  especially about the Board of Ed, then we did from

         25  the entire first panel, so, I am glad that my fellow
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          2  council members waited around.

          3                 Again, let me thank you for that

          4  because that is extremely helpful to us.  You are in

          5  my district, and my office stands ready to continue

          6  this issue.  I know you spoke with the George's as

          7  much as we can, and I think, after today, we had a

          8  little bit of a communication breakdown with the

          9  Administration regarding who was supposed to testify

         10  today but I am going to get answers from the Board

         11  of Ed regarding that 1998 policy.  I have a copy of

         12  it, and why it is not, like you said, it is in

         13  effect right now supposedly, but it is not being

         14  enforced, and it is not being adhered to, and

         15  perhaps by you being the impetus behind this meeting

         16  and us holding this hearing, and having the support

         17  we have from fellow council members, we can get the

         18  Board of Ed to focus on this because when they do,

         19  to their credit, they usually get something done.

         20  The Mayor has made this a cornerstone, and when we

         21  point out problems to them that they had not noticed

         22  yet, they sometimes come and do the right thing.

         23  So, hopefully, that will happen here, and that is

         24  the process that we will keep you involved in.

         25                 I do not have any specific questions,

                                                            84

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  does anyone else because I am sure we will be

          3  speaking many, many times, and you would probably

          4  rather do it in person.  So, thank you, Ms. Felice.

          5                 MS. FELICE:  Thank you for having me.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  This meeting is

          7  adjourned.

          8                 (Meeting adjourned at 11:55 a.m.)
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